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ACTION CALENDAR 
June 4, 2013 
(Continued from May 21, 2013) 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Christine Daniel, City Manager 

Subject: Draft Mayor and Council Office Budget Donation Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 
Provide comments on a draft Mayor and Councilmember Office Budget Donation policy 
and, if appropriate, provide direction to the City Manager to return with a draft 
Resolution modifying the policy for the City Council’s consideration. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
There are no direct fiscal impacts from modification of the policy. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
Members of the City Council have indicated an interest in discussing a more specific 
policy concerning donations from the office budgets of the Mayor and City 
Councilmembers. The current policy allows the City Council to approve donations from 
their office budgets to the City’s General Fund, and direct the City Manager to then 
make a grant of General Funds to a designated group or organization. The law requires 
that the City Council articulate a “municipal purpose” for such donations and grants. An 
alternative approach is presented in the draft “Councilmember Office Budget 
Relinquishment/Grant Policy” submitted for the City Council’s comment and discussion. 
(See Attachment 1.) 

BACKGROUND 
On July 25, 2006, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 63,412-N.S., “Establishing 
Council Expenditure and Reimbursement Policies.” (See Attachment 2.) This Resolution 
was intended to implement AB 1234, at that time a new state law that required all cities 
to adopt an expense reimbursement policy for Mayor and Council expenses. This 
Resolution specifically identifies authorized activities for expenditures and additionally 
provides: “Expenditures for all other activities require prior approval by the City Council 
and must meet an articulate municipal purpose that must be recited in the report 
proposing the expenditure and the resolution authorizing the expenditure.”  This 
provision has been implemented by way of reports from the Mayor or individual 
Councilmembers who wish to donate funds from their office budgets and then direct the 
City Manager to grant those funds to a specific organization.  Those reports and the 
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accompanying resolution, as required by Resolution No. 63,412, should state the 
specific municipal purpose for the expenditure of the funds. 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
The existing policy set forth in Resolution No. 63,412-N.S. could remain unmodified. 

CONTACT PERSON 
Christine Daniel, City Manager, 981-7000 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft Councilmember Office Budget Relinquishment/Grant Policy  
2. Resolution No. 63,412-N.S. Establishing Council Expenditure and 

Reimbursement Policies



 

 

Draft Councilmember Office Budget Relinquishment/Grant Policy 
 
 
Introduction – Limitations on the Expenditure of Public Funds 
 
The basic purpose of the City as an entity is to exist and function as a municipality. This 
is also reflected in the Charter, which limits the Council’s powers only to those 
“municipal affairs adequate to a complete system of local government”. (Section 38.)  
 
Exercises of this power may not be used solely to further the interests of particular 
individuals, although they may incidentally benefit private interests:  
 
 The exercise of the police power is available only for the purpose of 

promoting the general welfare, the interests of the public as distinguished 
from those of individuals or persons.  It cannot be used to promote private 
gain or advantage, except so far as the same may also promote the public 
interest and welfare, and it is the latter, and not the former, effect which 
forms the basis of the power and warrants its exercise.   

 
(Binford v. Boyd (1918) 178 Cal. 458, 461.) 
 
The Council’s basic powers circumscribe its ability to spend public funds. In other 
words, the Council cannot spend public funds for purposes that are beyond its authority 
in the first place. Thus the City may only use its funds for municipal purposes. In any 
given case the crucial inquiry is whether an expenditure serves such a purpose.  
 
 The determination of what constitutes a public purpose is primarily a 

matter for the legislature, and its discretion will not be disturbed by the 
courts so long as that determination has a reasonable basis. 

 
(County of Alameda v. Carlson (1971) 5 Cal.3d 730, 745-746.) 
 
If the courts find that there is a valid public purpose, they next examine whether the 
government's actions are reasonably related to effectuating this purpose.  (Tip Top 
Foods, Inc. v. Lyng (1972) 28 Cal.App.3d 533, 541.)  Public appropriations granted to 
private interests will not be considered unlawful diversions of public funds when the 
transaction serves the public interest, merely granting an incidental benefit to the private 
individual.  (Cane v. City and County of San Francisco (1978) 78 Cal.App.3d 654, 660.) 
 
Possible Criteria for Grants of City Funds from Councilmember Office Budgets 
 
A number of criteria have been suggested for limiting the relinquishment and grant of 
surplus Councilmember office budget funds. There are two ways that criteria could 
potentially limit such relinquishments and grants: by limiting the purposes for which they 
may be made, and by limiting the recipients to whom they may be made. In addition, 
short of prohibiting certain types of relinquishments and grants, it is possible to establish 
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different processes for making them, depending on either or both of the limiting factors 
noted above. 
 
Potential limiting criteria that address both purposes and recipients are as follows: 
 
Recipient 
 

Purpose 

The City (e.g., the Berkeley 
Public Library, the Berkeley 
Animal Shelter) 
 

Any purpose already being undertaken, because it already 
serves a public purpose. This includes both grants and 
attendance at fundraising events in capacity as the Mayor or 
a Councilmember. 
 

BUSD and other public agencies 
operating in Berkeley 
 

Any purpose already being undertaken, because it already 
serves a public purpose, assuming the activity is in Berkeley. 
This includes both grants and attendance at fundraising 
events in capacity as the Mayor or a Councilmember.  
 

Entities with which the City is co-
sponsoring a public event in 
Berkeley (e.g., Earth Day, 
Solano Stroll). 
 

City co-sponsorship suggests but is not conclusive of public 
purpose; public purpose would need to be stated, and all 
such events should be open to the public at no cost. 
Alternatively, a list of ongoing events that have been 
determined to serve a public purpose could be developed. 
 

Entities in Berkeley to which the 
City already contributes funds for 
municipal purposes (e.g., 
affordable housing or social 
service nonprofits) 
 

To advance the same public purposes for which the entities 
are funded. This includes both grants and attendance at 
fundraising events in capacity as the Mayor or a 
Councilmember. 
 

 
Relinquishments and grants for purposes and recipients that fall within these categories 
could be “pre-approved” by the Council, perhaps at the beginning of each fiscal year, 
thereby avoiding the need for individual Council items.  
 
Other proposed relinquishments and grants could be proposed in the same manner as 
is currently the case, but could require a 2/3 vote by the Council to approve them in 
order to ensure an appropriate public purpose has been articulated. 
















